EMMERSON RESOURCES LTD A.C.N. 117 086 745 3 KIMBERELY ST, WEST LEEDERVILLE, W.A., 6007 PO BOX 1573, WEST PERTH, W.A., 6872 Telephone 08 9381 7838 Facsimile 08 9381 5375

EIGHTH ANNUAL REPORT 20 MARCH 2008 – 19 MARCH 2009

EXPLORATION LICENCE 10370 BARKLY

LICENSEES: METEORIC RESOURCES N.L. A.B.N. 64 107 985 651 GIANTS REEF EXPLORATION PTY LTD A.C.N. 009 200 346

AUTHOR: A.WALTERS

April 2009

DISTRIBUTION:		MAP SHEETS:	
Department of Regional Development, Primary	Industry,	TENNANT CREEK	SE53-14
Fisheries & Resources			
Central Land Council			1:250 000
Emmerson Resources Ltd		GOSSE RIVER	5858
Meteoric Resources N.L.		FLYNN	5759
		TENNANT CREEK	5758
			1:100 000

Table of Contents

FI	FIGURES	
1.	1. SUMMARY	1
2.	2. INTRODUCTION	2
3.	3. LOCATION	3
	4. TENURE	
	5.1 REGIONAL GEOLOGY5.2 LOCAL GEOLOGY	5 5
	6. PREVIOUS EXPLORATION	
	6.1 TARGETS AND CONCEPTS6.2 EL 10370 BARKLY	
8.	8. REHABILITATION	13
9.	9. CONCLUSIONS	14

EIGHTH ANNUAL REPORT 20 March 2008 to 19 March 2009

FIGURES

Figure 1. EL 10370 Barkly Year 8 License Area

1. SUMMARY

Exploration License (EL) 10370 Barkly was acquired to search for Tennant Creek style iron oxide copper-gold deposits. Giants Reef Exploration Pty Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary of Emmerson Resources Ltd.

EL 10370 is explored under the Barkly Joint Venture (JV), this JV was inked with Giants Reef, and covers the southeast extension of the Tennant Creek mineral field which has a production history of 5M ounces of gold and 16M tonnes of copper which was won from high grade ironstone related deposits. The JV tenements cover the historical Bluebird and Perseverance workings. Perseverance historical results showed a best result of 3m at 43.2g/t Au from 72m depth. Those workings are covered by a Central Land Council exclusion zone whereas the shallow Bluebird workings where historical results indicate 172t of ore at 9.3g/t Au were produced are outside the exclusion zone.

Meteoric Resources currently has a 70% interest and Emmerson (Giants Reef) 30% with management rights being transferred back to Emmerson during February 2009.

This report records the exploration work done on EL 10370 during the eighth year of tenure from the 20 March 2008 to the 19 March 2009.

Previous exploration including ground magnetic and gravity surveying, followed by soil sampling focussed attention on Bluebird, which is a small outcropping ironstone body pitted by historic mining and prospecting. The Bluebird prospect is a Tennant Creek ironstone-hosted Au–Cu–Bi target. The host rocks are folded siltstones of the Proterozoic Tennant Creek Inlier.

Follow-up RAB drilling during 2006 tested anomalous gold and copper intersections in previous drillholes around Bluebird, and also tested a belt of anomalous auger soil geochemistry extending from the Bluebird area to the east. This work determined that the Bluebird ironstone body had a southerly dip, and that the earlier south-inclined RAB drilling was in fact sub-parallel to the dip of the target. Anomalous Au, Cu and to some extent Bi assays were returned. The eastern extension did not encounter massive ironstone, but did intersect hematite stringer alteration with associated anomalous Au, Cu and Bi.

There is indication of a halo of anomalous geochemistry, particularly copper, about the intersections which opens from about 25–30 m vertical depth, and extends downwards below the depth tested by RAB drilling.

During 2008 a 225 line-km ground radiometric survey with a Gamma Spectrometer PGIS SP was carried out over the general area, followed by soil and rock chip sampling to test anomalous zones generated. A total of 217 soil and 36 rock chip samples were analysed for Au by ICP-MS, and As, Bi, Ca, Cu, Fe, Sb, and U by ICP-AES at ALS Chemex, Brisbane. The results of the soil sampling were disappointing, but the rock chip sampling gave encouraging results. The results of the radiometric survey and geochemistry generated targets worthy of drill testing.

Planned RC drilling inclined to grid north during 2008 at the Bluebird prospect was delayed by a lack of rig availability.

A short programme of RC drilling inclined to grid north would be best designed to test for potential deep mineralisation below the base of oxidation.

EIGHTH ANNUAL REPORT 20 March 2008 to 19 March 2009

Expenditure for exploration on EL 10370 during year 8 was \$20,383.60 against a covenant of \$30,000, please refer to expenditure report.

2. INTRODUCTION

Exploration Licence 10370 Barkly was initially granted to Giants Reef Exploration Pty Ltd (Giants Reef) on the 20th March 2001, for period of (6) years over an area of 262 oneminute blocks (809 km2). At the end of the second year of tenure EL 10370 was reduced from 262 to 131 graticular blocks (396.70km2). A waiver of reduction was applied for at the end of the third year of tenure to retain 131 graticular blocks. A further voluntary reduction down to 66 graticular blocks was submitted and approved in February 2009.

Both Tennant Creek-style orebodies and major base metals or base metals/precious metals deposits are considered potential targets in EL 10370.

Giants Reef is a wholly owned subsidiary of Emmerson Resources Limited (Emmerson).

EL 10370 is explored under the Barkly Joint Venture (JV), this JV was inked with Giants Reef, and covers the southeast extension of the Tennant Creek mineral field which has a production history of 5M ounces of gold and 16M tonnes of copper which was won from high grade ironstone related deposits. The JV tenements cover the historical Bluebird and Perseverance workings. Perseverance historical results showed a best result of 3m at 43.2g/t Au from 72m depth. Those workings are covered by a Central Land Council exclusion zone whereas the shallow Bluebird workings where historical results indicate 172t of ore at 9.3g/t Au were produced are outside the exclusion zone.

Meteoric Resources currently has a 70% interest and Emmerson (Giants Reef) 30% with management rights being transferred back to Emmerson during February 2009.

This report records the exploration work done on EL 10370 during the eighth year of tenure from the 20 March 2008 to the 19 March 2009.

3. LOCATION

Exploration License 10370 covers an area of 200 km², approximately 45km east north east of the Tennant Creek Township, south of the Barkly Highway and falls within the Barkly (5859), Gosse River (5858), Tennant Creek (5758) and Flynn (5759) 1:100 000 scale map sheets. EL 10370 is within NT Portions 494 & 1075, Perpetual Pastoral Lease 1142, Tennant Creek Station and is subject to an Indigenous Land Use Agreement (ILUA) signed in September 2000 between the Native Title holders of the Tennant Creek region, represented by the Central Land Council (CLC), and Giants Reef.

The northern parts of EL 10370 can be reached from Tennant Creek township by driving along the Barkly Highway, and thence via secondary unsealed tracks to the south. Access into the central parts of the Licence is gained via the Gigantic mine and along secondary tracks from the Tennant Creek township or from the old Overland Telegraph Station.

Access to the southern region of the Licence area from the Tennant Creek Township is via the sealed road to the Peko and Nobles Nob mines, and thence via the un-sealed Gosse River Road. A network of unsealed tracks provides reasonable vehicular access to the remainder of the tenement.

During and immediately after rain access to any area of the licence is generally difficult if not inaccessible.

Figure 1 shows the location of the License with respect to the town of Tennant Creek.

4. TENURE

Tenure details for the Exploration License are as follows:

Exploration License	License Holder	Blocks & part- blocks	Area (km²)	Date of Grant	Period of Grant
EL 10370 Barkly	Meteoric Resources N.L. (70%) & Giants Reef Exploration Pty Ltd (30%)	66	199.5	20 March 2001	6 + 2 years

Exploration Licence 10370 Barkly was initially granted to Giants Reef Exploration Pty Ltd (Giants Reef) on the 20th March 2001, for period of (6) years over an area of 262 oneminute blocks (809 km2). At the end of the second year of tenure EL 10370 was reduced from 262 to 131 graticular blocks (396.70km2). A waiver of reduction was applied for at the end of the third year of tenure to retain 131 graticular blocks. A further voluntary reduction down to 66 graticular blocks was submitted and approved in February 2009.

The Initial 6 year term expired on 19 March 2007, a renewal Application was submitted and granted for a further two year period. The two year renewal period expired on 19 March 2009 and a renewal application was submitted for a renewal for a final two year term, Emmerson is still awaiting a decision.

EL 10370 is subject to an Indigenous Land Use Agreement (ILUA) signed in September 2000 between the Native Title holders of the Tennant Creek region, represented by the CLC and Giants Reef.

The licence also falls within NT Portions 494 & 1075, Perpetual Pastoral Lease 1142, Tennant Creek Station.

5. GEOLOGY

5.1 Regional Geology

The reader is referred to AusIMM Monograph 14 (Geology of the Mineral Deposits of Australia and Papua New Guinea), Volume 1, pp. 829-861, to gain a introduction to the regional geology and styles of gold-copper mineralisation of the area.

In 1995 the Northern Territory Geological Survey released a geological map and explanatory notes for the Tennant Creek 1:100,000 sheet, which covers the area of the license.

The rocks of the Warramunga Formation host most of the orebodies in the region and underlie the Exploration License.

5.2 Local Geology

EL 10370 is located in the Tennant Creek Inlier, an area of Proterozoic rocks consisting of three distinct geological provinces; the Davenport Province to the southeast, the central Tennant Creek Block and the Tompkinson Creek Province to the northwest. The Inlier is comprised of a gneissic basement overlain by Proterozoic sediments of the Warramunga Formation, Hatches Creek Group and the Tompkinson Creek Beds.

The sequence of Proterozoic sediments was intruded by younger Proterozoic granitoids around 1858 Ma to 1845 Ma during the Barramundi Orogeny. The Proterozoic rocks were subsequently overlain by Cambrian sediments of the Georgina Basin.

The Tennant Creek goldfield is located within the central block where the oldest rocks are the metasedimentary rocks of the Warramunga Formation, which are the host to the ironstone – gold – copper – bismuth mineralisation of the Tennant Creek goldfield.

The Warramunga Formation is comprised of a sequence of argillaceous sedimentary rocks that includes greywacke, siltstone, shale and units of haematitic – magnetite shale. Cross – cutting and conformable quartz – feldspar porphyries occur within the sedimentary sequence.

Following deformation and uplift of the basement, the volcanics and volcaniclastics of the Flynn Sub – Group were erupted (1845 Ma to 1827 Ma), with intrusion of porphyries and minor granitoids into the Warramunga Formation. The Warramunga Formation has been subjected to three phases of deformation, the first of which formed tight to isoclinal folds with an east west axis. The two later phases formed west – northwest trending faults and shear zones, and finally northwest trending faults. The project cover an area of poor outcrop comprised of Cenozoic and Quaternary Aeolian and alluvial sand cover (Chisholm).

The Barkly JV covers the southeast extension of the Tennant Creek mineral field which has a production history of 5M ounces of gold and 16M tonnes of copper which was won

from high grade ironstone related deposits. The joint venture tenements cover the old Perseverance workings where previous drilling showed a best result of 3m at 43.2g/t Au from 72m depth. Those workings are covered by a Central Land Council exclusion zone whereas the shallow Bluebird workings where historical records indicate 172t of ore at 9.3g/t Au were produced are outside the exclusion zone.

The ironstones form part of the Golden Mile line of historical workings that strike over a length of 4.5km outside the prospect area. Magnetic surveys indicate that this trend extends into the project area through the Perseverance-Bluebird workings. Geophysical surveys have been used to indicate possible ironstone occurrences with potential mineralisation. Magnetics and gravity have been used to define targets.

6. PREVIOUS EXPLORATION

6.1 Targets and Concepts

Exploration within EL 10370 is aimed at discovering typical Tennant Creek style gold deposits or gold-copper deposits within ironstone of the Warramunga Formation.

This type of deposit is well documented, of which there are many examples in the region, including Warrego, White Devil, Orlando, Gecko and North Star mines, as well as many other smaller mines. These all take the form of ironstone (magnetite and/or haematite) masses with associated chlorotic alteration and bodies of gold and/or copper mineralisation.

The discovery of the non-magnetic, haematite-rich Chariot deposit in 1998 has resulted in a broader exploration model by Giants Reef, which allows for the presence of extensive ore grade mineralisation hosted within primary, non-magnetic (haematite-rich) ironstones. Discoveries by Giants Reef of high grade mineralisation associated with haematite dominant ironstone at Marathon and Billy Boy, although small, are further examples of this style of mineralisation.

The potential for the haematite ironstones to host mineralisation in non magnetic areas essentially opens up the whole Tennant Creek goldfield to new target review. Along with the previously identified magnetic anomalies the Licence areas have the potential to host significant haematite mineralization either as new targets or as mineralisation extensions. At present there are no gravity maps for the Tennant Creek goldfield considered detailed enough to identify non-magnetic, haematitic gravity targets. In the next tenure year the geology of the Licence area will be assessed to decide whether a close spaced, high resolution gravity survey is warranted over the area.

6.2 EL 10370 Barkly

The License was acquired to search for IOCG deposits and to evaluate the extent of mineralisation associated with the Golden Mile Mineralised Trend, Warramunga Formation and the historical workings of the area.

Work carried out on EL 10370 during the first three years by Giants Reef focussed on the southern region of the tenement, which included the western extension to both the Peko Line and Nobles Nob lines of mineralisation, for Tennant Creek-type Ironstone hosted Au-Cu-Bi orebodies.

This work was centred on a series of prospects over a strike length of some 3.5 kms and which include the New Hope, Plumb, Comstock and Desert Hopes orebodies. Reprocessing of high quality gravity and magnetic data, a re-appraisal of previous drilling and a number of field trips into this area has re-defined targets and up-graded the potential of the area. In particular this work has provided greater confidence for further drill testing of the down-plunge potential of both the New Hope and Comstock mineralised structures and testing the New Hope gravity anomaly.

Work conducted under the JV up to the reporting period is best described by excerpts from Meteoric's Quarterly reporting.

17 November 2004

Meteoric Resources is pleased to announce a joint venture with Giants Reef Mining Limited on tenements EL10370, ML C57, and ML C217-C224 totalling 422sqkm in the south eastern part of the Tennant Creek field. The Mineral Leases cover the Perseverance workings which have been previously drilled with best results of 3m @ 43.2g/t Au from 72m in hole PERC-01 and 4m @ 4.7g/t Au from 14m in hole PERC-06. This high-grade mineralisation is associated with a series of outcropping hematite and magnetite ironstones. The workings are covered by a Central Land Council exclusion zone. Just east of the exclusion zone the Bluebird workings have recorded historical production of 172 t @ 9.3g/t Au.

The ironstones form part of the Golden Mile line of historical workings that strike over a length of 4.5km. All the ironstones in this line are associated with numerous dipolar bullseye magnetic features with ground magnetic anomalies varying between 100nT to 5000nT. Within the Perseverance area the hematite ironstones are associated with the 100nT anomalies while the magnetite ironstones are associated with the 5000nT anomalies.

No detailed modern gravity surveys have been completed in this area and a detailed gravity survey is proposed covering the potential eastern extension of the Golden Mile line over an area of 2km x 6km to test for hematite Au/Cu-rich ironstones. A second target is a pronounced aeromagnetic anomaly at R29 located in the southern part of the Barkley project area where a number of holes were drilled in 1974 with best results of 3m @ 2.8g/t from 70m in hole DDH 468. None of the holes intersected any magnetic material to explain the aeromagnetic anomaly.

The key terms of the joint venture are as follows:

• Meteoric may earn a 51% interest by the expenditure of \$300,000 within 3 years and must spend at least \$75,000 within the first year with a \$10,000 cash payment on signing of the agreement.

- Giants Reef may contribute at the 51% interest level. If Giants Reef does not contribute at this level Meteoric may earn a further 19% by expenditure of \$200,000 within an additional 2 years.
- Giants Reef may elect to toll treat mineable gold (and/or copper-gold) deposits of less than 100,000oz at its Warrego treatment plant, up to a maximum of 200,000ozs.

The Barkley joint venture is considered to be an opportunity for Meteoric to increase its landholdings of prospective and under-explored tenements in this high-grade mining district.

31 December 2004

As previously announced (17 November 2004) Meteoric has agreed terms for a joint venture on the 422sq km Barkly project situated 30 km east of Tennant Creek. Target areas within the Barkly tenements have been identified adjacent to the Perseverance gold workings (best drill intersection; 3m at 43.2g/t Au from 72m) and at the Flag magnetic anomaly.

A detailed gravity survey has commenced over a 2.5 km x 6km area encompassing The Perseverance-Bluebird line of gold workings. To date 2,800 gravity stations have been completed on 30m x 60m centres with encouraging results. The survey has confirmed well defined anomalies over the known mineralisation and outlined a previously unknown 800m-long gravity anomaly some 600m to the south of Perseverance. 1,850 gravity stations are planned on 60m x 120m centres over the area surrounding the detailed survey.

In addition, 380 gravity stations are planned over the Flag target in the southern part of the project area to test a strong magnetic anomaly situated about 15km along strike from the Golden Kangaroo and Black Snake prospects where Giants Reef recently announced high grade gold intersections.

31 March 2005

Detailed gravity surveys have been completed over the Perseverance-Bluebird line of gold workings and the Flag magnetic target in the southeast corner of the Barkly exploration licence. In addition, a detailed ground magnetic survey was carried out over Flag. To date a total of 5,831 gravity stations and 35 line km of detailed ground magnetics have been completed on this property.

The gravity survey at Perseverance-Bluebird outlined a well defined west-northwest trending gravity ridge some 8km in length flanked by several pronounced gravity anomalies, including the Perseverance gold workings (best drill intersection; 3m at 43.2g/t Au from 72m). Whilst the Perseverance workings are covered by a Central Land Council exclusion zone, 12 other gravity targets have been identified for detailed follow-up ground magnetic surveys which are scheduled to commence in May. Provision has been made for 4,000m of follow-up RAB drilling in June.

At Flag the detailed gravity and ground magnetic surveys identified a coincident magnetic and gravity feature some 600m in length situated about 15km along strike from the Golden Kangaroo and Black Snake prospects where Giants Reef recently announced high-grade gold intersections. It is proposed to drill this target in June subject to rig availability.

30 June 2005

A detailed 220 line-km cesium vapour ground magnetic survey has been completed in the Perseverance-Bluebird area about 30km east of Tennant Creek. This has outlined 8 discrete haematitic targets which correlate in part with apparent density anomalies that have been generated from inversion of detailed gravity data (5,800 stations). These targets vary in size from 4ha up to 22ha in size. These combined magnetic/gravity targets are considered to be worthwhile targets for Nobles Nob style haematite-Au/Cu deposits. In particular, 5 targets are in close proximity to the Perseverance and Bluebird historical gold workings and represent high priority areas.

A 5,000m shallow RAB programme is anticipated to start in August to test these areas.

30 September 2005

A 7,544m shallow vertical RAB drilling programme was completed over combined magnetic/gravity targets in the Perseverance-Bluebird area about 30km east of Tennant Creek. The drilling defined a 600m long bedrock copper anomaly, open to the east, along strike from the Bluebird workings. Follow-up inclined RAB drilling (1,373m) at Bluebird and on this anomaly gave a best intercept of 8m at 1.0% Cu and 0.3g/t Au from 72m at end of hole in drill hole TBRB-717. These encouraging results are currently being assessed.

31 December 2005

As reported last quarter, encouraging mineralisation was intersected at the Bluebird prospect 30km east of Tennant Creek in the NT. The drilling defined a 600m-long bedrock copper anomaly, open to the east, with a best intercept of 8m at 1.0% Cu and 0.3g/t Au from 72m at end of hole. A programme of follow-up RAB drilling is being planned for the onset of the dry season in April/May.

30 September 2006

A 36-hole, 2,215m RAB drilling programme was completed during the quarter at the Bluebird prospect situated about 30km east of Tennant Creek, NT. The drilling was designed to test a 600m-long E-W geochemical anomaly outlined by Meteoric's previous sampling and to follow up a previous RAB intercept of 8m at 1.0% Cu and 0.3g/t Au from 72m at end of hole in TBRB717. The geochemical anomaly coincides with a pronounced gravity ridge indicating the presence of a hematite ironstone or hematite alteration.

The drilling, on 100m line spacing's, intersected hematite ironstone and/or hematitechlorite alteration over the 600m strike length tested. The steep-dipping ironstone unit ranges from 10m to 50m in thickness and remains open to the east.

Anomalous copper, gold and bismuth values were intersected within hematite alteration on four drill lines over a 100m strike length with values over various 4m intervals ranging up to 0.2% Cu, 1.1g/t Au and 0.13% Bi. These anomalous values suggest that the mineralised ironstone intersected in TRRB717 extends at least 100m to the east. A second anomalous copper-gold zone was intersected at the eastern end of the ironstone horizon where two 100m-spaced lines intersected values up to 0.1% Cu, 0.25g/t Au and 189ppm Bi over various 4m intervals in or adjacent to hematite alteration. This anomalous zone was not adequately tested by the easternmost drill line and remains open in that direction and coincident with a discrete magnetic anomaly. Both of these anomalous zones are open at depth and plans are in hand to test the down dip extensions after the current wet season.

Meteoric has confirmed a 51% interest in the 350sq km Barkly JV and elected to continue to earn up to a 70% interest. Under the terms of the joint venture Meteoric may earn a further 19% by expenditure of \$200,000 by November 2009.

March 2007

DRILLING - An exploration programme comprising 2215 metres of inclined RAB drilling was carried out during 24 September to 30 September 2006 about the Bluebird prospect area within EL 10370 "Barkly".

The drilling totalling 36 RAB holes TBRB-735 to TBRB-770 followed up results of previous exploration during 2004-2005 which included gravity and ground magnetic surveys, and extensive RAB drilling comprising shallow vertical geochemical drilling and deeper angle drilling.

Weak to moderate Cu/Bi/Au geochemistry was intersected in the vicinity of the Bluebird workings, in particular an assay of 1.27% Cu associated with ironstone near the base of TBRB-717.

The objective of this latest programme was to investigate this result in greater detail with infill drilling about TBRB-717, followed by reconnaissance drilling of E-W striking gravity and magnetic features extending some 700 metres east of Bluebird.

SURFACE MAPPING - The area about Bluebird was mapped whilst waiting for the drill rig to arrive. There is little outcrop except in the vicinity of the Bluebird workings which are sited near small outcrops of ironstone on top of a low hill which occupies the centre of a circle of ironstone/siltstone talus 200 metres in diameter. Sand/clay overburden overgrown with spinifex and scattered scrub occupies the remainder of the explored area.

Two varieties of ironstone are present. The most common is a red brecciated hematitic chert which forms a bouldery outcrop measuring 50m x 30m on the hilltop. The second is a black specular hematitic ironstone which forms a smaller outcrop measuring 20m x 10m and situated 20 metres to the SE. The hematitic chert is brecciated and shot through with stringers of quartz and specular hematite, suggesting the cherty phase developed initially, the specular hematitic phase and quartz being a secondary overprints.

The third outcropping lithology is a red massive siltstone which outcrops on the sides of the hill below the ironstones. The Bluebird workings consist of a single vertical shaft and two decline shafts in a collapsed pit some 20m apart, as well as various pits and trenches. The shafts were started in siltstone, presumably to access the margins of the ironstone by drives. The greatest amount of mullock is adjacent to the pit with its two shaft openings suggesting these were the main mine workings. A previous report cites the Bluebird as having recorded a production of 172 tonnes at 9.3 gm/t Au.

Minor outcrop or subcrop of brecciated cherty/hematitic ironstone also occurs occasionally to the east of the main outcrop zone in otherwise flat soil-covered terrain.

RAB DRILLING - Previous inclined RAB drilling had been to the south along a grid azimuth of 180° (magnetic azimuth 175°), so initial drilling of the current programme was also in this direction. The first two holes TBRB-735 and 736 sited 20m south and north of TBRB-717 respectively failed to intersect ironstone though drilled to 100m and 90m.

The next hole TBRB-737, collared 20m to the east was in ironstone from surface to EOH at 73m, the hole being terminated by the drill rig having insufficient air pressure to lift heavy ironstone cuttings from this depth. These inconsistencies and the failure of subsequent holes, particularly TBRB-738, 739 and 741 to encounter ironstone suggested the ironstone bodies were in fact south-dipping.

This conjecture was tested by a vertical hole TBRB-742 which collared in ironstone but passed into siltstone at 48m, confirming that the ironstone did in fact have a dipping contact. The next two holes TBRB-743 and 744 were therefore turned around to a north azimuth beneath the apex of the hill. The two holes intersected 29m and 13m of ironstone respectively, in positions that indicated a south-dipping, downward thinning body whose surface expression was the massive specular hematite outcrop on the hilltop. With this recognition the remainder of the planned drilling was turned around to a north azimuth, with hole collar positions shifted to take this change into account.

No massive ironstones were encountered in drilling to the east of the main zone though chloritic/hematitic alteration was noted in places, which probably represents the eastern strike extension of the ironstone-forming alteration though lacking its full development.

No ironstone was intersected in a single hole TBRB-750 collared 20m west of TBRB-717, indicating the ironstone body pinches out in this direction.

GEOCHEMISTRY - All holes were logged, selective chip samples retained, and cuttings sampled in 4m composites which were forwarded to ALS Chemex in Alice Springs. After sample prep in Alice Springs, pulps were sent to Perth for assaying for Au, Cu, Bi and Fe.

The data when plotted in sections shows good correlation between high iron assays and intervals logged as ironstone in drill holes in the Bluebird area. Similarly the intervals logged with chlorite/hematite alteration correlate well with high iron assays in drill holes to the east.

In preliminary interpreted configuration of the iron-rich zones is downward-thinning and south dipping. The fully-developed ironstone body occupies a zone some 120m long which includes the outcropping ironstones about the Bluebird workings and extending under cover for 60m to the west. Patchy ironstone occurs in association with the narrow belt of chlorite/hematite alteration which extends to the east.

Strongly anomalous bismuth with values of several hundred to +1000 ppm was reported in association with the main ironstone body at Bluebird. Weakly anomalous bismuth with values of <100 ppm occurs within the chlorite/hematite alteration zone to the east.

Copper assays when plotted in section appear to take the form of downward-opening haloes from about 50m vertical depth. The highest values are associated with the Bluebird area ironstone, generally on its southern hanging wall side. No results were obtained which approached the 1.27% Cu previously reported, but in this area values ranging from 200 to 2000 ppm were common. In places the anomalous copper extends beyond the ironstone, perhaps indicating parallel zones of alteration at depth.

Spotty gold ranging from 0.4 g/t to 1.14 g/t occurs with high Fe-Cu-Bi association in the main ironstone zone about Bluebird. The best gold values occur at depths in excess of 50m which with the copper configuration suggests possible zonation with depth. Minor spotty gold occurs in one intersection of the chlorite/hematite alteration zone to the east.

CONCLUSIONS - The results of this programme suggest that the ironstone body at Bluebird is mineralised with a typical Tennant Creek-style Cu-Bi-Au association.

The distribution of spotty anomalous gold and the downward-opening configuration of anomalous copper below 50m vertical depth may be indicative of zonation with depth, another typical feature of mineralised Tennant Creek ironstones.

Typically the smaller deposits have been small but high-grade once the gold-rich zone of alteration was discovered, such as the TC-8 deposit.

There is compelling evidence in favour of downward zonation of mineralisation beneath the Bluebird ironstone, and as such deeper drilling to explore this possibility is warranted.

7. WORK DONE DURING THE REPORTING YEAR

The results of Meteoric's exploration to date suggest that the ironstone body at the Bluebird prospect is mineralised with a typical Tennant Creek-style Cu–Bi–Au association. The distribution of spotty anomalous gold and the downward-opening configuration of anomalous copper below 50 m vertical depth may be indicative of zonation with depth, another typical feature of mineralised Tennant Creek ironstones.

Typically, the smaller deposits have been small, but of high grade once the gold-rich zone of alteration was discovered, such as the TC-8 deposit.

There is compelling evidence in favour of downward zonation of mineralisation beneath the Bluebird ironstone, open from 25 to 30 m vertical depth and extending below the depth tested by RAB drilling, and as such deeper drilling to explore this possibility is warranted. During 2008 a 225 line-km ground radiometric survey with a Gamma Spectrometer PGIS SP was carried out over the general area, followed by soil and rock chip sampling to test anomalous zones generated. A total of 217 soil and 36 rock chip samples were analysed for Au by ICP-MS, and As, Bi, Ca, Cu, Fe, Sb, and U by ICP-AES at ALS Chemex, 32 Shand Street, Brisbane, Qld 4053. The results of the soil sampling were disappointing, but the rock chip sampling gave encouraging results.

The results of the radiometric survey and geochemistry generated targets worthy of drill testing.

Planned RC drilling inclined to grid north during 2007–08 at the Bluebird prospect was delayed by a lack of rig availability. The drilling was designed to test the 600 m-long geochemical anomaly and to follow up a previous drill intercept of 8 m at 1.0% Cu and 0.3 g/t Au from 72 m depth in hole TBRB-717. The geochemical anomaly coincides with a pronounced gravity ridge indicating the pressure of hematite alteration. A second copper-gold zone was intersected at the eastern end of the geochemical anomaly, which is open to the east.

Please refer to expenditure report for a total and breakdown of all expenditure on EL 10370 during the reporting period.

8. REHABILITATION

As no on ground Exploration was conducted over EL 10370 during the reporting period no rehabilitation was required.

9. CONCLUSIONS

Previous exploration including ground magnetic and gravity surveying, followed by soil sampling focussed attention on Bluebird, which is a small outcropping ironstone body pitted by historic mining and prospecting. The Bluebird prospect is a Tennant Creek ironstone-hosted Au–Cu–Bi target. The host rocks are folded siltstones of the Proterozoic Tennant Creek Inlier.

Follow-up RAB drilling during 2006 tested anomalous gold and copper intersections in previous drillholes around Bluebird, and also tested a belt of anomalous auger soil geochemistry extending from the Bluebird area to the east. This work determined that the Bluebird ironstone body had a southerly dip, and that the earlier south-inclined RAB drilling was in fact sub-parallel to the dip of the target. Anomalous Au, Cu and to some extent Bi assays were returned. The eastern extension did not encounter massive ironstone, but did intersect hematite stringer alteration with associated anomalous Au, Cu and Bi.

There is indication of a halo of anomalous geochemistry, particularly copper, about the intersections which opens from about 25–30 m vertical depth, and extends downwards below the depth tested by RAB drilling.

During 2008 a 225 line-km ground radiometric survey with a Gamma Spectrometer PGIS SP was carried out over the general area, followed by soil and rock chip sampling to test anomalous zones generated. A total of 217 soil and 36 rock chip samples were analysed for Au by ICP-MS, and As, Bi, Ca, Cu, Fe, Sb, and U by ICP-AES at ALS Chemex, Brisbane. The results of the soil sampling were disappointing, but the rock chip sampling gave encouraging results. The results of the radiometric survey and geochemistry generated targets worthy of drill testing.

Planned RC drilling inclined to grid north during 2008 at the Bluebird prospect was delayed by a lack of rig availability.

A short programme of RC drilling inclined to grid north would be best designed to test for potential deep mineralisation below the base of oxidation.

EMMERSON RESOURCES PTY LTD HARD COPY REPORT META DATA FORM

REPORT NAME:		
PROSPECT NAMES(s):	EIGHTH ANNUAL REPORT 20 MARCH 2008 – 19 MARCH 2009	
GROUP PROSPECT NAME:	BARKLY	
TENEMENT NUMBERS(s):	EL 10370	
ANNIVERSARY DATE:	20 MARCH	
OWNER/JV PARTNERS:	GIANTS REEF EXPLORATION PTY LTD (EMMERSON RESOURCES LTD) & METEROIC RESOURCES N.L.	
AUTHOR(s):	A.WALTERS	
COMMODITIES:	GOLD, COPPER, BISMUTH	
MAPS 1:250 000:	TENNANT CREEK SE53-14	
MAPS 1:100 000:	TENNANT CREEK 5758, FLYNN 5759, GOSSE RIVER 5858 & BARKLY 5859	
MAPS 1:25 000		
TECTONIC UNIT(s):	TENNANT CREEK INLIER	
STRATIGRAPHIC NAME(S) AMF GENERAL TERMS:	WARRAMUNGA FORMATION	
AMF TARGET MINERALS:	GOLD, COPPER, BISMUTH	
AMF GEOPHYSICAL:	MAGNETIC INTERPRETATION, GRAVITY SURVEY	
AMF GEOCHEMICAL:	SOIL SAMPLING, ROCK CHIP SAMPLING	
AMF DRILL SAMPLING:		
HISTORIC MINES:		
DEPOSITS:		
PROSPECTS:		
KEYWORDS:	EL 10370, BARKLY, EASTERN PROJECT AREA, WESTERN PROJECT AREA, METEORIC RESOURCES N.L., BARKLY JOINT VENTURE, BLUEBIRD, FLAG, PERSERVERANCE	

